
IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE 

 
------------------------------------------------------------------------ x 
        : 
In re         : 
        : 
WASHINGTON MUTUAL, INCORPORATED and : Chapter 11 
WMI INVESTMENT CORPORATION,   : 
        : Case No. 08-12229 (MFW) 
  Creditors.     : (Jointly Administered) 
        : 
        : Ref. No. D.I. 1234 & 1235 
        : Hearing Date:  8/24/09 
------------------------------------------------------------------------ x 
 

RESPONSE TO DEBTORS’ SIXTH OMNIBUS (SUBSTANTIVE) 
AND SEVENTH OMNIBUS (NON-SUBSTANTIVE) 

OBJECTION TO CLAIMS  
 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT  

 Creditors New Orleans Employees’ Retirement System (“New Orleans”) and 

MARTA/ATU Local 732 Employees Retirement Plan (“MARTA”) (collectively, the “Securities 

Claimants”), on behalf of a Class who purchased certain WaMu Mortgage Pass-Through Trust 

Certificates, submit this response to the Notice of Debtors’ Sixth Omnibus (Substantive) and 

Seventh Omnibus (Non-Substantive) Objection to Claims (the “Objections”).  Those Objections 

allege, among other things, that the Securities Claimants’ claims against Washington Mutual, 

Inc. (“WaMu”) should be disallowed or expunged because, when the Securities Claimants filed 

an amended complaint post-petition, WaMu was dropped from the amended complaint.  Based 

upon the post-petition failure to sue WaMu, the Debtors claim that they are no longer liable for 

claims asserted therein.  See New Orleans Employees’ Retirement System, et al. v. Federal 

Deposit Insurance Corporation, et al., No. C09-134RSM (W.D. Wash.) (the “Securities 

Action”). 
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 Since the automatic stay prevented the Securities Action from proceeding against WaMu, 

the Securities Claimants filed a proof of claim form, Claim Number 3515, in the amount of 

$39,837,106,891.00 for violations of federal securities laws based on purchases of certain WaMu 

Mortgage Pass-Through Trust Certificates between January 26, 2006 and November 1, 2007, 

issued by WaMu-created Trusts.  For the reasons set forth below, the Securities Claimants’ 

Claim Number 3515 against WaMu should not be disallowed or expunged. 

STATEMENT OF FACTS  

 On August 4, 2008, the Securities Claimants filed the Securities Action in Washington 

state court against WaMu, other WaMu entities, and certain individual defendants alleging 

violations of Sections 11, 12(a)(2) and 15 of the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”), 15 

U.S.C. §§77a, et seq.  The Securities Claimants filed the action on their own behalf and on behalf 

of a class of all persons and entities who purchased or otherwise acquired certain mortgage-

backed Certificates between January 26, 2006 and November 1, 2007 (the “Class”), issued by 

twenty-six specific Washington Mutual Mortgage Pass-Through Trusts pursuant to a 

Registration Statement filed by WaMu Asset Acceptance Corp. (“WMAAC”) with the Securities 

Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on December 20, 2005, as supplemented on January 3, 2006 

(the “Registration Statement”). 

 On September 25, 2008, the Office of Thrift Supervision (“OTS”) declared Washington 

Mutual Bank insolvent and appointed the Federal Deposit Insurance Company (“FDIC”) as the 

Receiver for Washington Mutual Bank pursuant to 12 U.S.C. § 1821(c).  Subsequently, on 

September 26, 2008, WaMu filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy triggering the automatic stay.  See 

11 U.S.C.A. § 362.  When the Securities Claimants filed their amended complaint on December 

16, 2008, the automatic stay was in place and thus WaMu could not be sued in the amended 
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complaint.  However, the Securities Claimants proceeded against the other WaMu entities and 

individual defendants who were not subject to the automatic stay.1  On March 30, 2009, the 

Securities Claimants filed a proof of claim form with the Delaware Bankruptcy Court naming 

WaMu as the debtor. 

NATURE OF THE CLAIM  

 The Securities Claimants’ claim arises out of the wrongful actions of WaMu and related 

entities in connection with the issuance and sale of the Certificates.  

WaMu, through its Home Loans Group segment, was one of the nation’s largest home 

loan originators.  Washington Mutual Bank was a wholly-owned subsidiary of WaMu, and 

WMACC was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Washington Mutual Bank.  WMACC pooled many 

of the mortgage loans WaMu originated and securitized them into mortgage-backed securities 

(“MBS”).  WMACC then sold the MBS to qualifying special purpose trusts it created (the 

“Issuing Trusts”).  The Issuing Trusts, in turn, sold Certificates representing interests in the 

monthly distributions of principal and interest from the underlying mortgages to the Securities 

Claimants and members of the Class.    

 The Certificates were sold in offerings by means of the Registration Statement and 

through Prospectuses (the “Offering Documents”).  WMACC acted as “Depositor” and “Issuer” 

within the meaning of the Securities Act in connection with the Certificate offerings.  

Washington Mutual Mortgage Securities Corp. (“WMMSC”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of 

Washington Mutual Bank and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of WaMu, was the “servicer” 

                                                           
1 Copies of both the August 4, 2008 Complaint and the December 16, 2008 Amended Complaint 
are attached hereto as Exhibits A and B respectively.  The Amended Complaint no longer named 
WaMu due to the automatic stay. 
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of the mortgage loans, and acted as “Sponsor” of offerings under the Securities Act, and WaMu 

Capital Corp., an affiliate of WaMu, acted as sole “underwriter” of the offerings.  

 The Offering Documents repeatedly touted the supposedly strict underwriting standards 

WaMu employed in connection with the origination of the mortgage loans underlying the 

Certificates.  They emphasized WaMu’s strict adherence to independent and objective real estate 

appraisal standards, and also set forth the loan-to-value (“LTV”) ratios WaMu used to qualify 

borrowers.     

 The crux of the Securities Action is that WaMu systematically and deliberately inflated 

the appraised values of the properties that secured the underlying mortgages.  By pooling and 

selling the mortgages to the Issuing Trusts, WaMu and WMACC shifted the undisclosed and 

increased risk of loss to purchasers of the Certificates including the Securities Claimants and the 

Class.  The scheme was ultimately revealed in a complaint filed by New York Attorney General 

Andrew Cuomo on November 1, 2007.  The complaint cites numerous internal WaMu 

documents obtained through the New York AG’s investigation, and details a broad based scheme 

by WaMu to improperly pressure supposedly independent appraisers to artificially inflate real 

estate values in order to close more loans than would otherwise close, because absent the inflated 

values, the LTV rations would have been too high for borrowers to qualify.     

 The Securities Action alleges that the Offering Documents contain materially false and 

misleading statements regarding WaMu’s underwriting practices and the LTV ratios in violation 

of the Securities Act that adversely impacted the value of the Certificates causing damage to the 

Securities Claimants and the Class.     
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ARGUMENT  

I. THE SECURITIES CLAIMANTS’ CLAIMS SHOULD NOT BE D ISALLOWED OR 
EXPUNGED  BASED ON THE EXCLUSION OF WAMU FROM THE A MENDED 
COMPLAINT  
 
A. The Securities Claimants Excluded WaMu from the Amended Complaint because 

the Automatic Stay Barred Suit Against Wamu after the Petition was Filed. 
 

In the Sixth Omnibus (Substantive) Objection to Claims, the Debtors seek to have the 

Court disallow or expunge the Securities Claimants’ Claim Number 3515 because WaMu was 

not named as a defendant in the amended complaint.  To the contrary, the Securities Claimants 

had no option but to exclude WaMu from the amended complaint because the bankruptcy 

triggered the automatic stay pursuant to section 362(a) of the Bankruptcy Code.  See In re 

Brown, 311 B.R. 721, 729 (Bankr. W.D. Pa. 2004) (“As a general matter, post-petition judicial 

actions or proceedings in a forum other than bankruptcy court are void ab initio in the absence of 

relief from the automatic stay,”); Rittenhouse Assocs., Inc. v. Frederic A. Potts & Co., Inc., CA 

No. 626, 1983 WL 103269, at *3 (Del. Ch. Aug. 1, 1983) (“Once a filing has been made, the 

Bankruptcy Court automatically becomes the initial forum from which a litigant may seek relief 

[and] [t]he mere filing of a petition triggers the [automatic stay] provisions of section 362[.]”).  

Accordingly, the Securities Claimants did not sue WaMu in the amended complaint.  Debtors 

may not now assert that because the Securities Claimants were barred from naming WaMu in the 

amended complaint they no longer have any liability with respect to the claims in the Securities 

Action. 

B. The Filing of an Amended Complaint, Post-Petition, that did not Name WaMu as 
Defendant, Does Not Preclude the Securities Claimants from Asserting Claims 
Against WaMu in Bankruptcy Court.  

 
The Securities Claimants did not include WaMu in the amended complaint in the 

Securities Action and, as required under Bankruptcy Rule 3003(c)(2), filed a proof of claim form 
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naming WaMu as the debtor in Delaware Bankruptcy Court.  See Greystone Digital Tech., Inc. v. 

Alvarez, CA No. 2796-VCP, 2007 WL 2088859, at *3 (Del. Ch. July 20, 2007) (“[A]ll creditors 

holding contingent, unliquidated, or disputed claims, must file a proof of claim with the 

bankruptcy court before a deadline (“bar date”) set by the court.”).  Accordingly, the Securities 

Claimants’ claim is properly before this Court.  See In re Celotex Corp., 204 B.R. 586, 630 

(Bankr. M.D. Fla. 1996) (“Except as otherwise expressly provided in the [Chapter 11] Plan, the 

Bankruptcy Court shall retain jurisdiction to hear and determine all Claims against and Interests 

in the Debtors … and all other causes of action which may exist by or on behalf of the 

Debtors.”).  Obviously the Securities Claimants could not sue WaMu in the amended complaint, 

since this bankruptcy had been filed.  Thus, by requesting that this Court disallow or expunge the 

Securities Claimants’ claim against WaMu in Bankruptcy Court because they did not sue WaMu 

post-petition, Debtors are essentially attempting to prohibit the Securities Claimants from 

litigating their claim in any forum, thus preventing any possible recovery on their substantial 

claim.  Because WaMu could not be sued in the Amended Complaint and the claim against 

WaMu was properly filed in this Court, the Securities Claimants claim against WaMu should not 

be disallowed or expunged. 

II. DEBTORS’ SEVENTH OMNIBUS (NON-SUBSTANTIVE) OBJE CTION IS MOOT. 
 
 In their Seventh Omnibus (Non-Substantive Objection), Debtors object to the Securities 

Claimants’ Claim Number 2589 on the basis that it was amended and superseded by Claim 

Number 3515.  The Securities Claimants will agree to strike Claim Number 2589 provided that 

Claim Number 3515 remains. 
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CONCLUSION 

 Based upon the foregoing, the Securities Claimants’ Claim Number 3515 should not be 

disallowed or expunged. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
MONTGOMERY, MCCRACKEN, 
WALKER & RHOADS, LLP 
 
/s/ Richard G. Placey 
Richard G. Placey (#4206) 
rplacey@mmwr.com 
R. Montgomery Donaldson (#4367) 
rdonaldson@mmwr.com 
Lisa Zwally Brown (#4328) 
lzbrown@mmwr.com 
1105 N. Market Street 
Suite 1500 
Wilmington, Delaware 19801 
(302) 504-7800 
 
Jonathan Gardner 
Paul J. Scarlato 
Julie Hwang 
LABATON SUCHAROW LLP 
140 Broadway 
New York, NY 10005 
(212) 907-0700 
 
John A Kehoe 
Lauren W. Pederson 
Bharati O. Sharma 
BARROWAY TOPAZ KESSLER 
MELTZER & CHECK, LLP 
280 King of Prussia Road 
Radnor, PA 19087 
(610) 667-7706 
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Robert D. Stewart 
Timothy M. Moran 
KIPLING LAW GROUP PLLC 
3601 Fremont Avenue N., Suite 414 
Seattle, WA 98103 
(206) 545-0345 
 
Counsel for Creditors New Orleans 
Employees’ Retirement System and 
MARTA/ATU Local 732 Employees 
Retirement Plan 

Dated:  August 12, 2009 
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IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE 
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        : 
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        : 
WASHINGTON MUTUAL, INCORPORATED and : Chapter 11 
WMI INVESTMENT CORPORATION,   : 
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  Creditors.     : (Jointly Administered) 
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            I hereby certify that on this 12th day of August, 2009 I caused a true and correct copy of 

the foregoing Response to Debtors’ Sixth Omnibus (Substantive) and Seventh Omnibus (Non-

Substantive) Objection to Claims and exhibits to be served via electronic notice to the parties as 

provided by the Court’s CM/ECF electronic filing system and via United States First Class Mail, 

postage prepaid, upon the following at the addresses listed below: 

 Brian S. Rosen, Esq. 
Marcia L. Goldstein, Esq. 
Michael F. Walsh, Esq. 
Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP 
767 Fifth Avenue 
New York, New York 10153 
Counsel for Debtors 

 

   
   
 
 

/s/ Richard G. Placey  
      Richard G. Placey (DE I.D. No. 4206) 




